
3. Brief History and Description of the Donald H. Bates 

Sanctuary 

 

2013 Gift from William and Nancy Bates, 16-acre woodlot in East Leverett. 

 

The 16-acre wooded property slopes toward the west. In the 1800’s this land, like most of 

Leverett, was cleared and used for grazing. The forest that grew up after the fields were 

abandoned (probably by 1900) is predictably large pines with younger hemlock and hardwood. 

Since most of the later logging was done along the western edge of the property, many of the 

trees in the central and eastern sections date from the abandoning of the fields. It is intriguing to 

stand today, looking at the barbed wire so deeply embedded in the trees, and try to imagine the 

open fields and those young saplings being used as fence posts.  

 

The eastern and central sections of the property have occasional springs and small streams 

draining into a laurel-covered wetland in the west. Slightly larger seasonal streams carry that 

water to Roaring Brook below. Historically, this brook provided the water power for most of the 

17 mills in East Leverett village in the 1800’s and early 1900’s.  

 

The southern boundary of the property borders Lancaster Pike (also call the Lancaster Cart-way 

and Old Lancaster Road). It was a 50-mile road built beginning in 1733 to connect Sunderland 

(and therefore the Connecticut River) with the eastern part of the state (Lancaster is on the 

Nashua River). Lancaster Pike is still a county road and serves as one pedestrian entrance to the 

property. 

 

At the eastern edge of the property is the former M-M Trail. While the 3-state trail has been 

moved closer to Route 202 and renamed the New England Heritage Trail, this section of the 

white-dot trail provides access to the property from Shutesbury Road and the part of the trail 

bordering the property has been included in the Donald H. Bates Sanctuary Loop Trail. This 

entrance, which is through the town-owned Roaring Brook Conservation Area, will be opened as 

soon as the bog bridges have been repaired (probably spring 2014). 

 

As the earlier Nearby Protected Areas map demonstrates, the property contributes to RGT's goal 

of helping protect contiguous habitats. It abuts the town-owned Roaring Brook Conservation 

Area. That land, in turn, is across Shutesbury Road from the David Smith Conservation Area 

(CR held by RGT), and then RGT's Mosher Conservation Area and finally, the large Paul C. 

Jones Working Forest (CR held by MA DFW). 



4. Deed and Abstract: Williams and Nancy Bates to RGT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Abstract Deed from William and Nancy Bates to RGT 

 

Property to “be held and managed in a manner consistent with the purposes set forth in said 

Trust, being the conservation and preservation of open space in perpetuity. 

 

Well and pipe to “Stetson Homestead” (house is across Shutesbury Road. well/pipe no longer in 

use, but right carried forward). RGT replaced the well cover in 2013. 

 

Subject to the provisions of Chapter 61B (recreation) 

 

Note: the property name (Daniel H. Bates Sanctuary) is not in the deed. It was part of the original 

discussion and decided in early March: 

 

 

“We have finally decided that we would like the property to be named the  

 

Donald H. Bates Sanctuary. 

 

This woodlot was his sanctuary - the place he loved to go. He had it logged once, and cut 

his own fire wood for many years. It will be a place for birds and animals to roam free 

forever, along with human visitors.   

 

Bill & Nancy Bates” 

 

Note on access:  

 

The two pedestrian access routes are from January Road (Lancaster Pike) - with parking at the 

East Leverett Cemetery and from a pull-off on Shutesbury Road via the old M-M (white dot) 

trail. The bog bridges will be repaired spring 2014. 

 

Access for work on the property is over the bridge linking Shutesbury Road properties #167 and 

#169. Park before the bridge and take the discontinued road past the Connelly home to the right. 

There is legal access on this road (see Baseline Appendix: Discontinued Roads) 

 

 

 

MAW 12/3/2013 

 

 



5.  Relevant Deeds: 

Bates, Chapter 61B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1906 Deed giving well/pipeline rights 

Other deed not included: William and Nancy Bates, book 290, page 525 (1987); Daniel H. Bates, 

book 867, page 28 (1942); Manson, book 737, page 201 (1926). This 1906 deed included to 

clarify  the origin of the well/pipe rights. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


